
 
TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, JANUARY 8, 2024 – 6:30 pm 

TOWN HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

DRAFT AGENDA 

 

Please note there will be an opportunity during the meeting for citizens to address the Town 

Council when the Mayor declares public comments open. We request that anyone addressing 

the Council sign up, approach the podium when called, state your first and last name, and 

provide your complete mailing address. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion 

B. ROLL CALL – Kim Kingsley, Clerk 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Wayne Austin 

D. PRAYER – Associate Pastor Barbara Farmer, Pleasant View United Methodist Church 

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Mayor Pillion 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

• December 4, 2023 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

• Town of Abingdon residents 

• Other public comments (e.g. property owners, organizations) 

H. PROCLAMATIONS  

I. PUBLIC HEARING -   Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to five (5) minutes per person. 

      1.  Proposed amendment includes additions to revenue from grants, interest on ARPA funds, and  

           an insurance claim. The total general fund budget amendment will increase the budgeted  

           expenditures and offsetting revenues by $1,050,849.43.   

J.   RESOLUTIONS 

1.  Resolution approving proposed comprehensive sign at property located at 370 E. Main Street 

     Abingdon, VA, Tax Map 013-1-82 advertising the entryway to the shared parking area of    

     Sweet Bay Brewing Company, a bike shop, an adventure retail store, and The Girl & The  

     Raven. – Mayana Rice, Asst. Town Manager and Director of Community Development 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

       1.  Proposed amendment includes additions to revenue from grants, interest on ARPA funds, and  

           an insurance claim. The total general fund budget amendment will increase the budgeted  

           expenditures and offsetting revenues by $1,050,849.43.   

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 

N. NEW BUSINESS 



O. OLD BUSINESS 

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

 1.  Abingdon Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

           - Appointment to fill vacancy for Mike Rush, who is ineligible to serve an additional term 

 2. Board of Zoning Appeals 

           -Appointment to fill vacancy of Richard Macbeth, who is ineligible to serve an additional  

            term 

      3. Tree Commission 

           -Reappointment of Stuart Hale, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 4.  District Three Governmental Cooperative 

           -Reappointment of Vice Mayor Anderson, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 

If Council so desires, Closed Session pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 

amended, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of considering applications for 

appointment/reappointment for position(s) on Abingdon Redevelopment and Housing 

Authority, Board of Zoning Appeals, Tree Commission, and District Three Governmental 

Cooperative. 

S.  CLOSED SESSION  

T.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



- 109 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2023 – 6:30 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 The meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Monday, December 4, 2023, at 

6:30 pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion  

B. ROLL CALL  

Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

 

Wayne Austin 

Donna Quetsch 

Derek Webb 

Vice Mayor Anderson 

Mayor Pillion 

  

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

D. PRAYER  

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (VIDEO 5:51 – 6:39) 

 

On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, moved Item M-2, Engineering 

update regarding flooding on Preston St SW and Hagy St SW by Matthew Lane, The Lane 

Group, Town of Abingdon Contract Engineer immediately after Item G and approved the 

agenda as amended. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

F. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES (VIDEO 6:39 – 7:10) 

• November 13, 2023 

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Mr. Webb, approved the November 13, 2023 

minutes as presented.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  



- 110 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS (VIDEO 7:11 – 11:47) 

• Eddie Copenhaver 

• Greg Lilly on behalf of the Abingdon Arts Commission 

 

H. PROCLAMATIONS 

I. PUBLIC HEARING  

J. RESOLUTIONS Applicant requested item be postponed.    

1.  Resolution approving proposed comprehensive sign at property located at 370 E. Main Street 

     Abingdon, VA, Tax Map 013-1-82 advertising the entryway to the shared parking area of    

     Sweet Bay Brewing Company, a bike shop, an adventure retail store, and The Girl & The  

     Raven.  

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES  

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS  

N. NEW BUSINESS  

Presentation of 2022/2023 Financial Audit for the Town of Abingdon – Jordan Owens, Brown, 

Edwards & Company (VIDEO 25:52 – 40:51) 

 

Jordan Owens presented the Council with the 2022/2023 independent auditor’s report, including 

as of June 30, 2023, the Statement of Net Position, Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds, 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and changes in the Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – 

General Fund.   Mr. Brown stated that it was a good audit and a clean report.    

 

      2.   Engineering update regarding flooding on Preston St SW and Hagy St SW - 

Matthew Lane, The Lane Group, Town of Abingdon Contract Engineer (VIDEO 12:00 – 

 25:36) 

 

Matthew Lane presented the Council with information regarding two residential homes located 

along Hagy Street that reported issues with stormwater inundating lawns during significant rainfall 

events. Mr. Lane described the area that contributes to the runoff and offered recommendations for 

reducing the impact of the stormwater, including roof gutters should be connected to a drainage 

pipe that diverts the stormwater away from the homes and a four-inch asphalt berm constructed 

from the Country Boy Seed entrance, along Hagy Street, to the parking area for Eades Auto Repair, 

which connects to a drainage swale.  He stated that written permission should be obtained from 

Country Boy Seed and Eades Auto Repair as some of the asphalt curb may require construction 

outside the Town’s right-of-way.   

 



- 111 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

Mr.  Webb asked what percentage of the issue results from runoff from the roofs.  Mr. Lane stated 

he would guess 50-60% because the water from the roof goes directly into the yard so the yards 

are saturated when the runoff water gets down Hagy Street to the subject property.   

 

Town Manager Mike Cochran asked Mr. Lane if he did hydrology as a good part of his engineering 

practice.  Mr. Lane stated that he was an experienced consultant engineer to municipalities 

throughout the Southwest Virginia area.   

 

Mr.  Webb questioned whether the town staff could complete or if something needed to farm out 

to a specialty group.  Mr. Cochran stated the Town staff could do the asphalt; however, rights-of-

way may be required from property owners.  The asphalt would be constructed in front of the 

homes from the entrance to Country Boy Seed to the entrance of Eades Auto Repair.   

 

Mayor Pillion questioned if that would divert the water onto Hagy Street so it could continue 

running further down Hagy Street and keep it out of their yards.   Mr. Lane affirmed.  Mayor Pillion 

asked if it was cost effective thing that wouldn’t alter their yards to a large degree.  Mr. Lane said 

the asphalt curb would be placed on top of the street.   

 

Mrs. Quetsch questioned if the runoff was strictly up to the property owners.  Mr. Lane responded 

yes.    

 

Counsel Cameron Bell asked for clarification that the runoff other than what is on the roof comes 

from other private property; Hagy Street has been there for 100 years longer, and that’s not the 

Urban Pathway that caused it.  It’s coming off the hill from private property on Colonial Road and 

reaching Hagy Street, but Hagy Street isn’t causing the flooding.  Mr. Lane responded that Hagy 

Street was the conduit that carried the water and referred to his exhibit.    

 

Mrs. Quetsch commented that a property owner told her it wasn’t a problem until the Town did 

something, questioning Mr. Lane whether the Town did not have anything to do with this situation.   

Mr. Lane stated that he has seen no indication of anything that the Town has done to either cause 

or worsen this situation. 

 

O. OLD BUSINESS   

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER  

   

1. Consideration of funding for William King Museum of Art – Mike Cochran, Town Manager 

(VIDEO 41:00 – 43:57) 

 

Mr. Cochran requested that the Council consider funding the William King Museum of Art 

$100,000 to fund operations as he believes the Museum is an anchor in the Town. 

 

Mr.  Austin said he spoke with several board members, that the Museum contributes to the Town’s 

tourism and is a great asset, and that the Council should fund their request. 

 



- 112 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Mr. Austin, approved funding $100,000 to the 

William King Museum of Art from the General Fund reserve. 

 

 The roll call vote was as follows: 

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

2.   Consideration of dates for Council meetings and retreat for 2024– Mike Cochran, Town  

     Manager (VIDEO 43:58 – 50:25) 

 

Mayor Pillion stated that she was unaware of any items for the tentative meeting on December 

20, 2023, and requested that the meeting be canceled. 

 

Dates were scheduled for the January – June 2024 Council meetings and retreat. 

 

3.   Discussion regarding correcting the Ordinance establishing the Abingdon Arts Commission,  

      specifically, “WHEREAS, the Abingdon Arts Commission shall consist of one ex officio  

      Councilmember appointed by the Town Council to serve terms coincident with their terms as  

      members of the Council.  The Town Manager will name a Town employee designee as an ex  

      officio member to serve as staff support for the Commission.  Town Council will appoint five  

      citizens to serve two-year consecutive terms, beginning July 1 of the year of appointment.”-  

      Mike Cochran, Town Manager (VIDEO 50:25 – 55:31) 

 

Mayor Pillion stated that the Ordinance doesn’t need to be changed.  Instead, it says that the 

members are going to serve two-year terms.   

 

Counsel Bell stated when the Commission was formed to have staggered terms so members would 

not go off at the same time, the initial group of I believe three can serve where it says two-year 

terms at the beginning but underneath that in the Ordinance it says but the initial appointment of 

the first group will be for one year from June to June.  Then, after that, they will be appointed 

again.  So, I think there’s some confusion about how that worked but that’s what the Ordinance 

says.  Mr. Bell did not think the Ordinance needed to be changed, but he felt that group hadn’t 

been appointed correctly.   Mr. Bell stated that the remedy would be to appoint that group of three 

from June 30, 2023, to June 30, 2025.   

 

Mayor Pillion indicated they were appointed in the Commission meeting.  Still, they need to be 

officially appointed by the Council for their two-year term so their first term was one year, and 

this will be their second term, which is two years, so that it could be staggered so everybody didn’t 

roll off and on at the same time.   



- 113 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 

Mr. Austin questioned the intent for them to be able to serve four years, two consecutive.  Counsel 

Bell stated that where the sort of confusion comes in, the general sort of like being the organizers 

of a corporation, there’s a bit different of who the organizers were, so I think those initial 

organizers’ first term was only one year, but that was to do the different term.  He stated that the 

remedy to that could be when those people come up in 2025, we could weigh that, or the Council 

could take some other action to give them an extra year at that point but to stay in line with the 

Ordinance.  I think the how we stay in line with how the Ordinance is without amending the 

Ordinance and going back in time is to appoint them for two years and then in 2025 we can decide 

whether they want to serve again or not.  I guess depending on how you view the intent they have 

another year available to them generally.    

 

Mr. Austin questioned whether, ultimately, it is our intent to have them be able to serve four years, 

two two-year terms. 

 

Counsel Bell stated that it works for the second group to avoid staggering.  He thinks after this 

first group of three gets through everybody from now on will have two two-year terms, but just 

because that initial group had only one year to create the stagger then and they had a one-year term 

the first term but that’s specifically stated in the Ordinance.   

 

Mayor Pillion stated we didn’t want everybody to roll off at the same time.   Mr. Austin stated he 

understood.  Counsel Bell stated that the group and I don’t have that part of the Ordinance on the 

screen, but it says they’ll be appointed from their term will end June 1, 2023, and then so their 

initial term was from 2022 to 2023, and then they’ll be appointed for a two-year term.   

 

Mr. Austin asked Mr. Lilly if he understood what we were talking about.  Mr. Greg Lilly said yes, 

it is okay, and this happened at the same time as the Veterans Advisory Board, and they are set up 

the exact same.    

  

 On motion by Mr. Webb, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson appointed Dirk 

Moore, Ben Jennings, and Matthew Frederick to serve from June 30, 2023, to June 30, 

2025 on the Abingdon Arts Commission. 

 

 The roll call vote was as follows: 

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

 



- 114 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

4.  Consideration of year-end bonus for Town employees – Mike Cochran, Town Manager 

     (VIDEO 55:32 – 58:58) 

 Town Manager Mike Cochran said the Town had an excellent year as presented by the auditors 

and he requested the Council consider a budget performance bonus in January as the staff does an 

exceptional job.  He suggested $1,000 for full-time employees and $250 for part-time employees 

who work more than 15 hours per week from the General Fund reserve. Mr. Cochran stated that 

this is different from the Christmas bonus which is determined by longevity and annually budgeted.   

Mr. Webb said he appreciated what the staff did, and this is a small token of their appreciation. He 

is very grateful to have the staff, and this is one small way to show a grateful attitude and demeanor. 

 

 On motion by Vice Mayor Anderson, seconded by Mr. Webb, approved the job 

performance bonus of $1,000 for full-time employees and $250 for part-time employees 

who work more than 15 hours per week to be paid from the General Fund reserve. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows: 

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch                           Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                                  Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson              Aye  

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS (VIDEO 58:59 – 1:04:56) 

 

 Mrs. Quetsch wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. She also thanked 

Abingdon Fire Department Chief Estes for the Christmas celebration dinner.  

 

   Vice Mayor Anderson wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year and 

thanked everyone involved in the Kiwanis Christmas parade.  

 

Mr. Austin thanked the Kiwanis Club for a well-organized and fun event, and he attended the 

November 27th Planning Commission meeting and thanked the members of committees for 

their service.   He also announced the Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee would meet on 

December 7th at 5:30 pm.   

 

Mayor Pillion thanked Abingdon Fire Department Chief Tim Estes for driving the Council in 

the parade and thanked the Kiwanis Club and the staff.  She also communicated that items 

collected and the Food City gift cards after the Day of Service were distributed to the Abingdon 

Police Department to distribute and purchase food items for people experience homelessness 

in the Town, with extra toothbrushes being distributed among the Festival of the Trees at the 

Visitor’s Center which will go to United Way for the schools’ Care Closets, and other items to 

the Ecumenical Faith In Action Food Pantry.  She wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a 

Happy New Year. 



- 115 - 

December 4, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 

 

 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES (VIDEO 1:04:56 – 1:05:44) 

      1.  Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee 

      -Reappointment of John Legard, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 

 On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, reappointed John Legard to 

serve an additional term on the Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 
           

S. CLOSED SESSION  

  

Mayor Pillion declared the meeting adjourned. 

            

     ___________________________________  

     Mayor Amanda Pillion 

_______________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 

 

 































































 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

PROPOSING AN AMENDED BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON AND TO 

MAKE APPROPRIATION FOR THE AMENDMENT OF CURRENT EXPENSES 

AND REVENUES OF THE TOWN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING  

JULY 1, 2023, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2024 

   

WHEREAS, a proposed amended balanced budget setting forth the revenues and 

expenditures for the Town of Abingdon was prepared and submitted to the Abingdon Town 

Council on January 8, 2024; and   

     

          WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on January 8, 2024, in accordance with Sections 

15.2-2504; 15.2-2507 and 15.2-1427 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, concerning 

amendment of the Town of Abingdon Fiscal Year 2023-2024 budget as further set forth herein; 

and   

  

        WHEREAS, the first reading of the amended ordinance was held by the Council of the 

Town of Abingdon on January 8, 2024; and  

  

  WHEREAS, proposed amendment includes additions to revenue from grants, interest on 

ARPA funds and an insurance claim.  The total general fund budget amendment will increase the 

budgeted expenditures and offsetting revenues by $1,050,849.43. 

  

              WHEREAS, the following amendment proposed for the 2023-2024 fiscal year amended 

budget:  

 

REVENUE SOURCE    EXPENDITURE 

DEQ Litter Prevention Grant  $       5,849.43  Sustain Abingdon  

VA Department of Forestry Grant $     10,000.00  Tree Give-away 

Welcome Center  

     Merchandise Sales   $     10,000.00  Merchandise supplies  

ARPA Interest    $     11,000.00  Splashpad Recirculation Tank 

VFIS Insurance Claim  $1,000,000.00  Fire Truck  

Norfolk Southern Grant  $     14,000.00  Fire Safety Program 

 

TOTAL    $1,050,849.43 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Abingdon, 

pursuant to Section 15.2-2500, et seq. of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, the following:   

 

Revenue General Fund be increased by: $1,050,849.43 as set forth 

Expenses General Fund be increased by: $1,050,849.43 as set forth 

 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance of adoption of the amended budget shall 

take effect on January 8, 2024.     

 

CERTIFICATE 

   

Pursuant to Section 2-100 of the Code of the Town of Abingdon, I hereby certify that I have 
reviewed the foregoing ordinance Proposing an Amended Budget for the Town of Abingdon, 
Virginia and to reflect the foregoing amendments, modifications and additions and find it to be 
in correct form this ____  day of December, 2023. 

   

_______________________________   

Cameron Bell, Counsel   

 

This ordinance was adopted on first reading on January 8, 2023, to take effect on January 8, 2024 

pursuant to Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, Section 15.2-2507, any local governing body 

may adopt such amendment at the advertised meeting, after first providing a public hearing during 

such meeting on the proposed budget amendment. 

 

   

_____________________________   

Amanda Pillion, Mayor   

  

   

The undersigned clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies that the 
foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting of the 
Council held on January 8, 2024.  I hereby further certify that such a meeting was a regularly 
scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was 
present.  I further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members 
and the voting on the foregoing ordinance was as follows:   

   

 
MEMBERS ATTENDANCE VOTE 

Amanda Pillion, Mayor   
Dwyane Anderson, Vice Mayor   
Derek Webb   
Donna Quetsch   

  Wayne Austin   
 

   

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of January 8, 2024. 

   

______________________________   

Kimberly Kingsley, Town Clerk   

  


	A - 1 2024.01.08 draft agenda
	F - 1 2023.12.04 minutes
	J - 1 370 E Main Street
	K - 1 Budget Amendment Ordinance

